Active English Grammar 
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 문법 해설 
 [Unit 1] Basic Punctuation and Simple Sentences
█ Part A Capitalization and Punctuation
	대문자 사용법
	문장의 첫 문자는 대문자로 쓰라.
	The bird is pretty.

	
	고유명사의 첫 문자는 대문자로 쓰라.
	My name is Sarah.

	
	이름 앞에 붙는 호칭의 첫 문자는 대문자로 쓰라.
	I like Doctor Jones.

	
	일인칭 단수 대명사는 대문자로 쓰라.
	Yes, I do.

	
	월, 요일, 휴일의 첫 문자는 대문자로 쓰라.
	It is November.

	
	
	Today is Wednesday.

	
	
	Independence Day is fun.

	
	언어, 국적, 국가의 첫 문자는 대문자로 쓰라.
	I speak English.

	
	
	I am Canadian.

	
	
	I live in Australia.

	마침표
	문장의 끝에 마침표를 찍어라.
	He is a student.

	
	축약된 단어의 끝에 마침표를 찍어라.
	I like Dr. Jones.

	물음표
	의문문의 끝에는 물음표를 쓰라. who, what, where, when, why, how, am/is/are, do/does/did로 시작하는 문장은 보통 의문문이다.
	How are you?

Are you listening? 
Did you see that?

	느낌표
	강한 감정을 나타내는 단어나 문장 뒤에는 물음표를 쓰라.
	Help!

I am very surprised!

	아포스트로피
	축약된 단어의 중간에 아포스트로피를 쓰라.
	I am happy. = I’m happy.

I do not know. = I don’t know.

	
	아포스트로피는 소유를 나타낸다. 명사나 이름 끝에 “아포스트로피+s”를 덧붙이라.
	Amy’s bag is blue, but James’s bag is green.

The bird’s feet are small.

	
	S로 끝이 나는 복수명사의 소유를 나타내기 위하여 끝에 아포스트로피만 붙여라.
	The teachers’ lounge is here.

The students’ bags are full.

	*Dr.에 미국영어에서는 마침표를 쓰지만, 영국영어에서는 마침표를 쓰지 않는다.


█ Part B Statements
	평서문은 정보를 제공하는 문장이다. 
	We play tennis together.

Lemons are sour.


	
	주부
	술부
	결합된 문장

	동일한 술부를 가진 두 개의 평서문은 흔히 결합된다.
	Sarah

Nick
	likes rock music.
	Sarah and Nick (They)

like rock music.

	동일한 주부를 가진 두 개의 평서문은 흔히 결합된다.
	The cherries
	are ripe.

are juicy.
	The cherries are ripe and juicy.

	
	We
	watch TV every day.

watch TV after dinner.
	We watch TV every day after dinner.*

	*빈도를 시간 앞에 쓰라.
· We watch TV every day after dinner. (O)   We watch TV after dinner every day. (X)


█ Part C Suggestions (Let’s and Why don’t)
	제안은 사람들이 가지고 있는 생각이다. 그것은 유용한 힌트와 생각이다.
	Let’s have a party.

Why don’t you have a snack?


	Let’s로 시작하는 제안

	Let’s (= Let us)로 시작하는 제안은 화자를 포함한다.
	Let’s eat.

Let’s walk to the park.

Let’s not be late.

	Let’s 다음에 오는 동사는 원형이다.
Let’s eat. (O) Let’s eats. (X)


	Why don’t로 시작하는 제안

	Why don’t로 시작하는 의문문은 제안이다.
	Why don’t we eat?

Why don’t you come with us?

Why don’t I help you?

	Why don’t we/you 다음에 오는 동사는 원형이다.
Why don’t we eat? (O) Why don’t we eats? (X)


█ Part D Interjections and Exclamations
	감탄사

	감탄사는 단어나 짧은 구이다.

감탄사는 흔히 감정을 나타낸다.
	Wow! Thanks!

No way! Ouch!

	감탄사는 흔히 감탄부호(!)로 끝이 난다.


	감탄문

	감탄문은 문장이다.
감탄문은 what나 how로 시작한다.
	What nice skis you have!

How quiet it is!

	감탄문은 느낌표(!)로 끝이 난다.


	
	주어
	동사

	감탄문에서는 주어와 동사가 what/how구
다음에 온다.
	What a big car
	that
	is!

	
	How lovely
	you
	look!

	감탄문에서 주어와 동사가 생략될 수도 있다.
	What a big car!
	
	

	
	How lovely!
	
	

	What로 시작하는 감탄문에서는 what구에 언제나 명사가 포함된다.
What an interesting book (this is)! (O)     What interesting! (X)

	How로 시작하는 감탄문은 how구에 명사를 포함하지 않는다.
How interesting (this is)! (O)              How an interesting book! (X)


█ Part E Imperatives
	명령문은 명령, 충고, 지시를 나타낸다.

	명령
	Look at the teacher.
Don’t chew gum in class.

	충고
	Have fun.

Don’t worry.

	지시
	Turn left.

Don’t take this medicine before bedtime.

	청자가 명령문의 주어이다. 
탐(Tom)과 어머니가 거실에 있다. 탐의 어머니가 “문 닫아.”라고 말한다. 탐은 어머니가 자기에게 말하고 있음을 안다. 주어 (you)는 암시되어 있다. 주어는 말할 필요가 없다.

	명령을 점잖은 요청으로 바꾸려면 please를 덧붙이라. 
명령: Come here.                   점잖은 요청: Please come here.

Come here, please.


█ Part F Direct and Indirect Objects
	직접목적어는 동사의 동작을 받는다. 직접목적어는 명사, 명사구, 대명사가 될 수 있다.
	The goalie kicks his teammate the ball.

We baked Mom a cake.

	간접목적어는 행동이 누구 또는 무엇을 겨냥하는지 보여준다. 보통은 사람을 겨냥한다.
	The goalie kicks his teammate the ball.

We baked Mom a cake.

	간접목적어는 보통 직접목적어 앞에 오지만, to나 for를 써서 직접목적어 뒤에 올 수 있다.
	The goalie kicks the ball to his teammate.

We baked a cake for Mom.


	주어
	동사
	간접목적어
	직접목적어
	

	Amy
	is telling
	Lisa
	a secret.
	

	We
	will get
	him
	a present
	tomorrow.


	주어
	동사
	직접목적어
	전치사
	간접목적어

	You
	bought
	a present
	for
	your sister.

	They
	gave
	a card
	to
	their mother.


[Unit 2] Nouns, Possessive Adjectives, and Basic Pronouns

█ Part A Nouns and Possessive Adjectives
	명사는 사람, 장소, 물건, 생각을 가리키는 단어이다.

	명사는 단수이거나 복수이고, 흔히 그 앞에 관사가 있다.
	단수: banana
	복수: bananas

	관사는 a, an, the이다.

a는 자음 앞에 온다.

an은 모음 앞에 온다. 

때때로 관사가 사용되지 않는다.
	A baby cries.

An orange is round.
	The teenagers chat.

Apples are delicious.


	복수명사에 대한 철자법

	명사의 어미
	규칙
	예

	자음 또는 모음 (규칙명사 대부분)
	-s를 더한다.
	a bed → beds  
a table → tables

	-s, -ss, sh, -ch, -x
	-es를 더한다.
	a bus → buses  
a match → matches

a glass → glasses  
a box → boxes

	자음 + y
	y를 i로 바꾸고 -es를 더한다.
	a baby → babies   
a story → stories


	소유형용사는 명사 앞에 온다. 그들은 소유(your pen)나 관계(my friends)를 나타낸다.

	1인칭 단수
	my
	1인칭 복수
	our

	2인칭 단수
	your*
	2인칭 복수
	your*

	3인칭 단수
	his
	3인칭 복수
	their

	
	her
	
	

	
	its*
	
	

	*its는 소유형용사이다. (It’s = It is)
*your는 소유형용사이다. (You’re = You are)


█ Part B Subject pronouns and Object Pronouns

	인칭대명사

	주격 대명사는 주격 명사를 대신한다. 문장에서 주어는 행동을 한다. 주어는 보통 동사 앞에 온다.
	John plays basketball.

He likes basketball. (He = John)

Lisa and Tom play the drums.

They enjoy playing the drums.

(They = Lisa and Tom)

	목적격 대명사는 목적격 명사를 대신한다. 문장에서 목적어는 행동을 받는다. 목적어는 보통 동사 뒤에 온다.
	John plays basketball.

John likes it. (it = basketball)

Lisa and Tom play the drums.

Lisa and Tom enjoy playing them.

(them = the drums)


	
	주격 대명사
	목적격 대명사

	1인칭 단수
	I
	me

	2인칭 단수
	you
	you

	3인칭 단수
	he
	him

	
	she
	her

	
	it
	it

	1인칭 복수
	we
	us

	2인칭 복수
	you
	you

	3인칭 복수
	they
	them


[Unit 3] Simple Present

█ Part A Be and Information Question with Be
	단순현재시제의 Be동사

	
	주어
	Be
	

	단순현재시제의 be는 사람 또는 사물에 대한 사실 또는 정보를 제공한다.
	I
	am
	happy.

	
	You
	are
	

	
	He / She / It
	is
	

	
	We
	are
	

	
	They
	are
	

	우리는 때때로 주어+be의 축약형을 사용한다. 아포스트로피가 생략된 철자를 대신한다.
John is tall. → John’s tall.

	축약형은 격식을 갖춘 글에서는 사용하지 않는다.
I’m, You’re, He’s, She’s, It’s, We’re, They’re


	Be동사로 만드는 의문문

	
	의문사
	Be
	주어
	응답

	Where는 위치에 관한 질문을 한다.
	Where
	is
	my pen?
	It’s on the table.

	
	Where
	are
	you?
	I’m at school.

	What은 물건에 관한 질문을 한다.
	What
	is
	his name?
	His name is John.

	
	What
	are
	they?
	They’re roses.

	Who*는 사람에 관한 질문을 한다.
	Who
	is
	she?
	She’s my cousin.

	
	Who
	are
	they?
	They’re new students.

	의문사+is의 축약형은 대개 음성언어에서 쓰지만 문자언어에서도 쓸 수 있다.
Where’s, What’s, Who’s

	who는 문장의 주어를 가리킨다. whom은 문장의 목적어를 가리킨다. who는 비격식적인 문장에서 목적어를 가리킬 수도 있다.


█ Part B Negative Forms of Be and Yes/No Questions with Be

	Be동사의 부정형

	
	주어
	be + not
	

	not은 문장을 부정문으로 만든다.
	I
	am not
	from France.

	
	He / She / It
	is not
	

	
	You / We / They
	are not
	


	주어와 함께 하는 축약형 그리고 not과 함께 하는 축약형

	
	주어와 함께 하는 축약형
	not과 함께 하는 축약형

	be동사를 가진 문장에서, 축약형은 주어 또는 not와 함께 한다.
	I’m not
	*

	
	he’s / she’s / it’s not
	he / she / it isn’t

	
	you’re / we’re / they’re not
	you / we / they aren’t

	am + not의 축약형은 없다.


	Be동사와 함께 하는 Yes/No 의문문

	질문
	짧은 응답

	Be
	주어
	
	Yes
	No

	Am
	I
	at home?
	Yes, you are.
	No, you are not.

	Are
	you
	
	Yes, I am.
	No, I am not.

	Is
	he / she / it
	
	Yes, he / she / it is.
	No, he / she / it is not.

	Are
	we
	
	Yes, you are.
	No, you are not.

	Are
	they
	
	Yes, they are.
	No. they are not.

	부정 단축응답은 축약형을 쓸 수 있지만, 긍정 단축응답은 축약형을 쓸 수 없다.
No, you’re not. / No, you aren’t. (O) Yes, you’re. (X)

	긴 응답은 전체 문장을 포함한다.
Yes, I’m at home. / No, I’m not at home.


█ Part C Regular Verbs
	규칙동사

	
	주어
	동사
	

	단순현재시제는 때때로 사실에 대하여 쓰인다. 또한 규칙적 행동에 대하여서도 쓰인다.
	I / You / We / They
	exercise
	every day.

	
	He / She / I
	exercises*
	

	3인칭 단수 주어를 위한 동사는 -s로 끝이 난다.


	3인칭 단수의 형태와 발음

	
	3인칭 단수의 형태
	발음

	대부분의 동사에 -s를 첨가
	bakes     drinks
jumps     writes
	/s/

	
	runs       sings
saves      leads
	/z/

	-sh, -ch, -ss, -x로 끝나는 동사에는 -es를 첨가
	finishes    teaches
dresses    mixes
	/iz/

	자음 + y로 끝나는 동사는 y를 i로 바꾸고 -es를 첨가
	cries      dries
studies    hurries
	/z/

	모음 + y로 끝나는 동사는 y를 그대로 두고 -s를 첨가
	buys      enjoys
plays      stays
	/z/


	빈도부사는 때때로 단순현재 동사와 함께 쓰인다. 그것들은 “How often?”이라는 질문에 답한다. 빈도부사는 대부분 동사 앞에 오지만, be동사인 경우 그 뒤에 온다.

	0% _____________________________________________________________________ 100%

Never        rarely / seldom        sometimes        often        usually        always
She never comes to class late. / I usually eat breakfast. / He is always happy.

	다른 빈도부사는 대개 문장의 끝으로 간다: every day / Friday / morning; once / twice a week; three times a year.
He gets a haircut once a month. / I brush my teeth every morning.


█ Part D Irregular Verbs
	불규칙동사

	
	주어
	동사
	

	go, have, do는 3인칭 단수에서 불규칙적이다.
	I / You / We / They
	go
	home after school.

	
	He / She / It
	goes
	

	
	I / You / We / They
	have
	brown hair.

	
	He / She / It
	has
	

	
	I / You / We / They
	do
	the dishes.

	
	He / She / It
	does
	


	Have의 기능

	have는 소유권, 소유, 또는 관계를 나타낸다. 또한 일부 묘사나 표현에 쓰이기도 한다.

	소유권

She has an MP3 player.
	소유

He has our tickets.

	관계

I have two cousins.
	묘사

Dogs have four legs.

	일반적 표현

have (food/drink)

have a problem

have a stomachache/headache

have a cold

have fun

have time


█ Part E Negative Verb Forms and Yes/No Questions

	동사의 부정 형태

	
	주어
	Do + Not
	본동사
	

	현재시제에서 동사의 부정은 do + not의 도움을 받는다.
	I / You / We / They
	do not
	run
	fast.

	
	He / She / It
	does not
	
	

	본동사는 3인칭단수에서 변하지 않는다.
He does not like pears. (O)    He does not likes pears. (X)

	때때로 do + not의 축약형을 사용하기도 한다.
do not = don’t; does not = doesn’t

	본동사가 be동사이면 do를 사용하지 않는다.
He is not (isn’t) tall. (O)       He does not be tall. (X)


	Yes/No 의문문

	질문
	응답

	Do
	주어
	본동사
	Yes
	No

	Do
	I / You / We / They
	sing?
	Yes, you/I/you/they do.
	No, you/I/you/they do not.

	Does
	He / She / It
	
	Yes, he/she/it does.
	No, he/she/it does not.

	부정 축약형 응답은 보통 축약형을 쓴다.
No, I don’t. / No, he doesn’t.

	긴 응답은 완전한 문장을 포함한다.
Yes, I sing. / No, I don’t sing.

	본동사가 be이면 do를 사용하지 말 것.
Are you happy? (O)      Do you be happy? (X)


█ Part F Information Questions

	정보를 묻는 의문문

	주어 의문문

	
	의문사
	본동사
	

	정보를 묻는 의문문은 정보를 묻는다. 의문사가 주어일 때는 조동사가 필요 없다.
	1What
	makes
	you happy?

	
	2Who
	teaches
	this class?

	목적어 의문문

	
	의문사
	조동사
	주어
	본동사
	

	의문사가 목적어일 때는 조동사가 주어 앞에 온다.
	3Who/Whom*
	do
	you
	admire?
	

	
	4What
	do
	you
	do
	on Sunday?

	
	5where
	do
	they
	play
	baseball?

	
	6When
	does
	your mom
	get
	home?

	
	7Why
	do
	you
	like
	chocolate?

	
	8How
	does
	she
	feel
	today?


	질문에 대한 답의 예

	1Summer makes me happy.                     5They play baseball at the park.

	2Mrs. Lee teaches this class.                     6She gets home at five o’clock.

	3I admire my dad.                              7Chocolate tastes good.

	4We relax on Sunday.                           8She feels OK.

	*Whom은 격식이 있는 상황에서 목적어를 가리킨다. Who도 격식이 덜한 상황에서 목적어를 가리키는데 사용할 수 있다.


[Unit 4] Nouns and Articles

█ Part A Countable and Uncountable Nouns

	명사는 가산명사 또는 불가산명사이다.

	가산명사는 낱낱이 셀 수 있는 물건이다. a, many, a few 또는 수사를 가산명사 앞에 쓰라. 가산명사는 복수가 될 수 있다
	I bought two shirts and a scarf.

We saw many cars and a few vans.

	가산명사: apple, ant, bag, book, cat, chair, chip, cup, donut, friend, house, map, page, neighbor, pet, question, teacher, tooth

	불가산명사는 낱낱이 셀 수 없는 물건이다. *much 또는 a little을 불가산명사 앞에 쓰라. 불가산명사는 복수가 될 수 없고 a가 앞에 올 수도 없다.
	I’m having a little soup for dinner.

	불가산명사: bread, cheese, coffee, food, soup, furniture, homework, information, mail, meat, milk, money, music, rice, soup, time, traffic, water, work

	*much는 부정문과 의문문에만 사용한다.
They don’t have much fun.

Is there much traffic?


	a lot of, some, any는 가산명사와 불가산명사에 다 사용할 수 있다. any는 부정문과 의문문에만 사용한다.

	
	가산명사
	불가산명사

	a lot of
	They have a lot of pets.
	I found a lot of information online.

	some
	Eat some chips.
	She needs some coffee.

	any
	Do you have any questions?

I don’t see any apples.
	Do they have any homework?

There isn’t any milk.


█ Part B Articles

	관사

	a / an
	부정관사 a/an은 단수가산명사에만 사용한다. 이들 부정관사는 처음 언급하거나 비슷한 것 가운데 하나일 때 사용한다.

	자음 앞에 a를 쓰라.
	Nick is eating a sandwich. She teaches at a university.

I need a book about Korean history.

	모음 앞에 an을 쓰라.
	John sees an airplane. You need an umbrella.

I’ll see you in an hour. (h는 묵음이다.)

	the
	정관사는 단수나 복수에 다 사용한다. 정관사는 이미 언급한 구체적인 것과 화자들이 알고 있는 것에 쓴다. 또한 정관사는 명사가 유일한 것일 때 쓴다.

	Nick is eating a sandwich. The sandwich is delicious.

John sees an airplane. The airplane is in the sky. (There is only one sky.)

He’s in the kitchen. (Most homes have only one kitchen.)

The moon is bright. (There is only one moon.)

	인명, 언어, 대륙, 국가 등의 앞에는 the를 쓰지 말라.
Mary’s from South America. Many people speak French in Canada.

예외: the United States, the Netherlands, the UK, the Philippines


	통칭

	the는 때때로 동물, 발명, 악기에 관한 통칭으로 쓰인다.
	My favorite animal is the elephant. (코끼리 전체)

Who invented the radio?

Many people can play the guitar.

	다른 통칭은 관사를 쓰지 않는다. 이 때 가산명사는 복수가 된다.
	Bananas are yellow.

Students usually wear uniforms.

Cows eat grass. Dogs eat meat.


[Unit 5] Present Progressive

█ Part A Statements

	
	주어
	be
	본동사 + ing
	

	현재진행시제는 현재 일어나고 있는 행동을 나타낸다. 이 때, be동사와 본동사 + ing를 쓴다.
	I
	am
	running.
	

	
	He / She / It
	is
	playing
	a game.

	
	You / We / They
	are
	singing
	a song.

	주어와 be의 축약형을 쓰기도 한다.

I’m thinking. / Jim’s eating. / You’re playing.


	현재진행형의 동사 철자 규칙

	동사 어미
	규칙
	예

	단모음
	-ing 더하기
	do → doing

	자음 + e
	-e를 생략하고 -ing 더하기
	Dance → dancing

Bake → baking

	단모음 + 단자음
	자음을 한번 더 쓰고 -ing* 더하기
	hug → hugging

sit → sitting

shop → shopping

	이중모음 + 단자음
	-ing 더하기 
	sleep → sleeping

rain → raining

	이중자음
	-ing 더하기
	talk → talking

push → pushing

	모음: a, e, i, o, u

	자음: b, c, d, f, g, h, j, k, l, m, n, p, q, r, s, t, v, w, x, y, z

	w와 x는 철자를 겹쳐 쓰지 말라.

snow → snowing / fix → fixing / cry → crying


█ Part B Negative Forms and Questions

	부정 형식

	현재진행 문장에서는, not가 be와 본동사 사이에 들어 간다.
	I am not watching TV.

He/She/It is not working.

You/We/They are not sleeping.

	두 가지 단축형이 사용될 수 있다.

주어와 함께 하는 단축형: We’re not playing baseball. She’s not reading.

not와 함께 하는 단축형: We aren’t playing baseball. She isn’t reading.


	Yes/No 의문문

	Be
	주어
	본동사 + ing
	

	Am
	I
	singing
	loudly?

	Is
	he / she / it
	working?
	

	Are
	you / we / they
	eating
	now?

	짧은 응답: Yes, you are. / No, you’re not. / No, you aren’t.

긴 응답: Yes, you’re singing loudly. / No, you’re not. / No, you aren’t singing loudly.


	정보 의문문

	주어 의문문

	
	의문사
	Be
	본동사 + -ing
	

	의문사가 주어이면, 어순은 서술문과 동일하다.
	What
	is
	happening?
	

	
	Who
	is
	teaching
	today?

	다른 정보 의문문

	
	의문사
	Be
	주어
	본동사 + -ing
	

	다른 의문문에서는 주어가 be동사 다음에 온다.
	Why
	am
	I
	studying
	math?

	
	Where
	is
	he / she / it
	going?
	

	
	How
	are
	you / we / they
	doing
	today?


█ Part C Present Progressive vs. Simple Present

	서술문
	현재진행은 현재 진행되는 행동을 보여 준다.
단순현재는 일상적 행동과 사실을 보여준다.
	He is brushing his teeth now.

He brushes his teeth every day.

I am walking to school right now.

I walk to school every morning.

	부정서술문
	현재진행은 부정서술문에서 be를 쓴다.
단순현재는 부정서술문에서 do를 쓴다.
	We aren’t playing tennis now.

We don’t play tennis every day.

It’s not raining right now.

It doesn’t rain every day.

	의문문
	현재진행은 의문문에서 be를 쓴다.

단순현재는 의문문에서 do를 쓴다.
	Are you reading a book now?

Do you read a book every evening?

What are you eating right now?

What do you eat every day?

	비진행(상태)동사
	비진행동사는 단순현재로 쓸 수 있다.

비진행동사는 현재진행으로 쓰지 않는다.
	I see a bird. (O)

They know many people. (O)

I’m seeing a bird. (X)

They’re knowing many people. (X)


	일반적 상태동사: think, understand, want, believe, cost, hate, have, hear, know, like, love, need, prefer, see, smell, taste, hear

	I need a napkin right now. (O)        I am needing a napkin right now. (X)

	think와 have는 보통 상태동사이지만, 때때로 어떤 의미와 더불어 현재진행으로 쓰인다.

	비진행: think(= 믿다, 알다)
진행: think (= 머리를 통해서 하고 있는 생각)
	We think art class is fun.

We’re thinking about art class.

	비진행: have (= 소유하다)

진행: 즐기다, 즐거운/ 불쾌한 시간을 보내다, 저녁을 먹다, 문제가 있다 
	She has a red sweater.

Are you having fun?

They’re having dinner.


[Unit 6] Simple Past

█ Part A Be동사
	단순과거시제에서의 Be동사

	
	주어
	Be
	

	단순과거시제에서의 be동사는 과거에 있어서의 사람이나 물건에 관한 사실이나 정보를 제공한다.
	I
	was
	happy.

	
	You
	were
	

	
	He / She / It
	was
	

	
	We
	were
	

	
	They
	were
	


	Be동사를 가진 정보의문문

	의문사
	Be
	
	응답

	Where
	were
	his parents?
	They were at work.

	When
	were
	you in India?
	I was there in 2007.

	What
	was
	her cat’s name?
	Its name was Tiger.

	How
	was
	the party?
	It was great.

	Who
	was
	your fourth-grade teacher?
	She was Mrs. Lee.

	Why
	were
	they unhappy?
	Because they were hungry.

	긍정서술문과 긍정의문문의 was와 were에는 축약형이 없다.


	단순과거와 함께 쓸 수 있는 부사들이 있다. 이 부사들은 보통 문장의 처음이나 끝에 온다: yesterday, yesterday morning, yesterday afternoon, yesterday evening, last night, last week, last month, last year, last winter, last summer, ten minutes ago, three days ago, a month ago
Yesterday afternoon, I was at the dentist. 
He was in my class last year.


█ Part B Be: Negative Forms and Yes/No Questions

	Be동사의 부정형

	
	주어
	be + not
	

	not는 문장을 부정으로 만든다.
	I
	was not
	at the party.

	
	He / She / It
	was not
	

	
	You / We / They
	were not
	

	was not의 축약형은 wasn’t이고, were not의 축약형은 weren’t이다.

I wasn’t angry. / They weren’t here.


	Be동사를 가진 Yes/No 의문문

	질문
	응답

	Be
	주어
	
	Yes
	No

	Was
	I
	at home?
	Yes, you were.
	No, you weren’t.*

	Were
	you
	
	Yes, I was.
	No, I wasn’t.

	Was
	he / she / it
	
	Yes, he/she/it was.
	No, he/she/it wasn’t.

	Were
	we
	
	Yes, you were.
	No, you weren’t.

	Were
	they
	
	Yes, they were.
	No, they weren’t.

	짧은 부정응답은 보통 축약형을 쓴다.


█ Part C Regular Verbs

	
	주어
	동사
	

	단순과거는 과거에 일어나서 과거에 그친 행동을 나타낸다.
	I
	asked
	a question.

	
	He / She / It
	
	

	
	You / We / They
	
	


	규칙동사의 철자 규칙

	동사 어미
	규칙
	예

	자음 (대부분의 규칙동사)
	-ed를 더하라.
	play → played

learn → learned

watch → watched

	자음 + e
	-d를 더하라.
	scare → scared

hope → hoped

	자음 + y
	y를 i로 바꾸고 -ed를 더하라.
	try → tried

worry → worried

	자음 + 모음 + 자음 (1음절어)
	끝자음을* 한번 더 쓰고 -ed를 더하라.
	hug → hugged

shop → shopped

	Vowels: a, e, i, o, u

Consonants: b, c, d, f, g, h, j, k, l, m, n, p, q, r, s, t, v, w, x, y, z

* Do not double w or x.

snow → snowed / fix → fixed


█ Part D Irregular Verbs

	
	주어
	동사
	

	불규칙동사의 과거는 -ed나 -d로 끝나지 않는다.
	I
	went
	outside.

	
	He / She / It
	
	

	
	You / We / They
	
	


	일반적 불규칙 과거시제 동사

	break → broke

buy → bought

catch → caught

come → came

do → did

drink → drank

drive → drove
	eat → ate

fight → fought

get → got

give → gave

go → went

have → had

make → made
	put → put

read → read*

run → ran

say → said

see → saw

sit → sat

sleep → slept
	stand → stood

swim → swam

take → took

teach → taught

think → thought

wake → woke

write → wrote

	*read의 철자는 같으나 발음은 다르다. 현재시제의 read는 need와 운이 같다. 과거시제의 read는 red와 발음이 같다.


█ Part E Negative Verb Forms and Yes/No Questions
	동사의 부정 형태

	과거시제의 동사의 부정은 did + not + 본동사를 사용한다. 이 규칙은 규칙동사와 불규칙동사에 모두 적용된다.
	I did not walk to school yesterday.

	
	He/She/It did not see the butterfly.

	
	You/We/They did not have lunch today.

	did not의 축약형은 didn’t이다.

I didn’t go to practice. / They didn’t eat breakfast.

	did + not은 be동사와 함께 쓰이지 않는다. 과거시제에서 be동사의 부정형은 was/were + not을 사용한다.

I wasn’t shy. (O)       I didn’t be shy. (X)

We weren’t late. (O)   We didn’t be late. (X)


	Did와 함께 하는 Yes/No 의문문

	Did
	주어
	본동사
	

	Did
	I / he / she / it / you / we / they
	draw
	a picture?

	짧은 응답:

Yes, you/he/she/it/I/we/they did.

No, you/he/she/it/I/we/they didn’t.


█ Part F Information Questions

	정보 의문문은 사실을 묻는다. 본동사는 원형을 사용한다.
	의문사
	did
	주어
	본동사
	

	
	1Who / Whom
	did
	I / he / she / it / you / we / they
	see
	yesterday?

	
	2What
	
	
	say
	

	
	3Where
	
	
	go
	

	
	4When
	
	
	leave
	

	
	5Why
	
	
	come
	

	
	6How
	
	
	do
	

	응답 예시:

1I saw Lisa yesterday.        4I left at 3:00.

2He said he was upset.       5I had a meeting with the principal.

3She went to the ice rink.     6They did well.

	What과 Who는 때때로 의문문의 주어가 된다. 이 경우에는, 본동사는 의문사 바로 뒤에 온다. 이 때 Did는 필요하지 않다.

What happened? / Who came?


[Unit 7] Future
█ Part A Be Going To
	be going to + 동사는 말하는 순간 이전에 미래에 대하여 세워둔 확실한 계획을 말하는데 쓰인다. 또한 미래의 사실이나 예측에 쓰기도 한다.
	확실한 계획: We are going to fly to Paris next week. We bought the tickets yesterday.

미래의 사실/예측: It’s going to rain.

	미래시제를 나타내는 일반적 시간표현: tonight, tomorrow, tomorrow morning/afternoon/

evening/night; next Friday/week/month/weekend/winter/year; this spring/April; soon; later; someday; a week from now (= in a week)


	Be Going To

	
	주어
	Be going to
	본동사
	

	서술문
	I
	am going to
	be
	hungry soon.

	
	He / She / It
	is going to
	
	

	
	You / We / They
	are going to
	
	

	
	주어
	Be going to
	본동사
	

	부정 서술문
	I
	am not going to
	see
	them tomorrow.

	
	He / She / It
	is not going to
	
	

	
	You / We / They
	are not going to
	
	

	축약형: She’s (not)/she isn’t going to; We’re (not)/We aren’t going to


	Be Going To를 가진 Yes/No 의문문

	Be
	주어
	going to
	본동사
	

	Am
	I
	going to
	be
	famous?

	Is
	he / she / it
	
	
	

	Are
	you / we / they
	
	
	

	짧은 응답: Yes, you are. / No, you’re not. / No, you aren’t.


	Be Going To를 가진 정보의문문

	의문사
	be
	주어
	going to
	본동사
	

	Who
	is
	
	going to
	come
	to the party?

	What
	are
	We / you / they
	going to
	do
	tomorrow?


█ Part B Will
	Will + 동사는 미래에 관하여 말할 때 쓴다.

Will은 조동사이다. Will은 불확실한 계획에 쓰이고, 때때로 maybe나 probably와 함께 쓰인다.
Will은 말하면서 만든 계획을 나타내기도 하고, 요청과 제의에도 쓴다.
	불확실한 계획: Maybe we will have a party.

말하면서 만든 계획:

A: There’s no sugar for the coffee.

B: I won’t have coffee, then. I’ll have juice.

요청: Will you please hold the door?

제의: Your bag is heavy. I’ll help you carry it.

	미래의 사실이나 예측을 말할 때, be going to나 will을 쓸 수 있다.
It’s going to be sunny tomorrow. = It’ll be sunny tomorrow.


	Will

	
	주어
	Will
	본동사
	

	서술문
	I/He/She/It/ You/We/They
	will
	fix
	your bicycle.

	
	주어
	Will + Not
	본동사
	

	부정 서술문
	I/He/She/It/ You/We/They
	Will not
	like
	the president.

	주어 + will의 축약형: I’ll, He’ll, She’ll, It’ll, You’ll, We’ll, They’ll

will not의축약형: won’t.


	Will을 가진 Yes/No 의문문

	Will
	주어
	본동사
	

	Will
	I / he / she / it / you / we / they
	clean
	the kitchen?

	짧은 응답: Yes, you will. / No, you won’t.

	Will을 가진 정보 의문문

	의문사
	will
	주어
	본동사
	

	Who
	will
	
	be
	at the meeting?

	What
	will
	they
	discuss?
	


█ Part C Conditional Statement, may, and might
	첫째 조건서술문은 미래의 사건에 의해서 어떤 일이 일어나거나 일어날 수도 있음을 말한다. 그것은 두 개의 절(문장)이 if와 콤마에 의해서 연결되어 있다. if절은 미래에 관한 이야기인데 단순현재시제를 취한다. 나머지 절은 미래의 결과를 서술한다.
	If she studies tonight, she’ll do well on the test tomorrow.

If you don’t go to bed soon, you aren’t going to feel good in the morning.


	결과절은 여러 가지 다른 미래형을 취한다: will, be going to, may, might. may와 might는 둘 다 조동사로 “maybe will”의 의미이다. will처럼, 그 뒤에 오는 동사는 동사의 원형이다.

	미래를 나타내는 if절 (단순현재)          →           미래 결과절

	If it rains next Saturday,
	we won’t go to the beach.

	If I don’t see you tomorrow,
	I’m going to send you a message.

	If the traffic is bad,
	you may not* arrive on time.

	If they eat all that candy,
	they might get sick.

	결과절이 앞에 올 수도 있다. 그럴 경우, 콤마가 필요하다.

We won’t go to the beach if it rains next Saturday.

You may not arrive on time if the traffic is bad.

	may와 might의부정형은 may not + 동사 그리고 might not + 동사이다. may not과 might not에는 축약형이 없다.


	if절에 미래시제를 쓰지 않도록 하라.

If we win, I’ll be happy. (O)           If we’ll win, I’ll be happy. (X)


[Unit 8] Pronouns

█ Part A Whose and Possessive Pronouns

	소유명사는 소유(Kim’s dog) 또는 연관(John’s friend)을 나타낸다. 

소유명사는 다른 명사 앞에 오거나 그 스스로가 되기도 한다. (It’s Rob’s book./ It’s Rob’s.)

	단수명사와 불규칙복수명사는 -‘s를 사용한다.
만일 두 개의 명사가 and로 이어져 있으면 뒤의 명사에만 -‘s를 붙인다.
	The girl’s hat is cute.

Today is Children’s Day.

Mom and Dad’s car is new.

	일반 복수명사에는 아포스트로피(‘)만 붙인다.
	These bikes are the boys’.

When is Teachers’ Day?


	Whose (+ 명사)는 소유에 관하여 묻는다.

	Whose is it?       Whose car is that?        Whose bag is this?


	소유대명사는 소유명사 또는 형용사+명사를 대신한다.

	My dog is small, but Ed’s dog is big.        →     Mine is small, but his is big.

They aren’t your books. They’re her books.  →     They aren’t yours. They’re hers.

	소유형용사
	소유대명사

	my
	mine

	your
	yours

	his
	his

	her
	hers

	its
	its*

	our
	ours

	their
	theirs

	* 소유대명사 Its는 거의 사용되지 않는다.


█ Part B Demonstrative Pronouns

	This / These
	This는 가까이에 있는 것을 가리킨다. 단수이다.
	This sweater is too big.

(내가 스웨터를 들고 있다.)

Do you like this restaurant?

(우리는 식당 안에 있다.)

	
	These는 가까이에 있는 것을 가리킨다. 복수이다.
	These are my friends.

(내 친구들이 옆에 서 있다.)

John brought these cookies.

(쿠키가 옆에 있다.)

	That / Those
	That는 멀리 떨어져 있는 것을 가리킨다. 단수이다.
	That sweater is too big.

(멀리 있는 스웨터를 가리키고 있다.)

Do you like that restaurant?

(식당 옆을 지나가고 있다.)

	
	Those는 멀리 떨어져 있는 것을 가리킨다. 복수이다.
	Those are my friends.

(친구들은 멀리 떨어져 있다.)

John brought those cookies.

(쿠키는 멀리 떨어져 있다.)

	대명사가 가리키는 명사가 분명하면, 그것을 생략할 수 있다.

This cake is very good. This is very good.

(나는 가족과 말하고 있다. 우리는 모두 케이크를 먹고 있다)

	This는 곧 말하거나 하려고 하는 일에 대하여 쓴다.

Our dog can do tricks. Watch this! (우리 개가 묘기를 부릴 참이다.)

	That는 이미 일어난 일에 쓴다.

That concert was excellent. (우리는 콘서트에 갔다.)

	축약형: that is = that’s. 그러나 this is에는 축약형이 없다.


█ Part C Reflexive Pronouns

	재귀대명사

	재귀대명사는 주어와 목적어가 같을 때 목적어로 쓰인다.

	Mary and Al drove Mary and Al to the beach.
	Mary and Al drove themselves to the beach.

	Jim is looking at Jim in the mirror.
	Jim is looking at himself in the mirror.

	재귀대명사는 by와 함께 쓰여서 혼자임을 나타낸다.

	I went to the movies alone.
	I went to the movies by myself.

	재귀대명사는 문장의 끝에 쓰여서 “도움을 받지 않고”라는 뜻을 나타낸다.

	They made the pie without any help.
	They made the pie themselves.

	목적격 대명사
	재귀 대명사

	me
	myself

	you
	yourself / yourselves

	him
	himself

	her
	herself

	its
	itself

	us
	ourselves

	them
	themselves


█ Part D It
	it는 흔히 날씨, 시간, 거리를 나타낼 때 쓴다.
	날씨
	A: How’s the weather?

B: It is a beautiful day.

A: What will the weather be like tomorrow?

B: It will rain tomorrow.

	
	시간
	A: What time is it?         B: It’s five-thirty.

A: What day is it?           B: It’s Wednesday.

A: What month is it?       B: It’s October.

A: What year is it?          B: It’s 2010.

A: What’s the date today?  B: It’s April 5th.

What date is it? (X)

	
	거리
	A: How far is it from here to the mall?

B: It’s three miles.*

	It로 하는 날씨의 일반적 표현: hot, warm, chilly, cold, freezing, sunny, cloudy, partly cloudy, clear, nice, windy, foggy, humid, degrees Fahrenheit/Celsius

	* 1 mile = 1.6 kilometers
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